
1

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

Council Meeting

Wednesday, 24th 
April, 2019

Lord Mayor: Councillor Cyril Windsor
Chief Executive: Colin Carmichael

Public Document Pack



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Dear Councillor

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Hastings Borough 
Council to be held at the Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place, Hastings, East 
Sussex, TN34 3UY, on Wednesday, 24th April, 2019 at 6.00 pm at which 
meeting the business specified below is proposed to be transacted.

Yours sincerely,

Chief Legal Officer

Muriel Matters House
Breeds Place
Hastings

17 April 2019

AGENDA

1.  
2.

Apologies for Absence

(b) Approve the minutes of the last budget full council meeting

3.  Declarations of Interest

4.  Announcements from the Mayor and Leader

5.  Questions (if any) from:
a) Members of the public under Rule 11
b) Councillors under Rule 12

6.  Motion (Rule 14)

7.  Membership of Committees
To give effect to any request received from a political group for a 

(a) To approve as a correct record the minutes of the last full council 
meeting



- 2 -

change in their representation on committee(s).

8.  Reports of Committees
a) To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during 

the discussion of any items considered while the public were 
excluded by the relevant committee because it is likely that if 
members of the public were present there would be disclosure 
to them of exempt information as defined in the respective 
paragraphs of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 
referred to in the minutes of the relevant committee.

b) To receive and consider the recommendations and any 
decisions of the following committees.

Minute No. Subject Cabinet 
Member/Chair

Cabinet – 4 MARCH 2019
158. Site at West Marina Chowney
159. (C) Animal Welfare 

licensing policy
Fitzgerald

160. Bohemia leisure and 
cultural facilities 
study brief

Batsford

163. Insurance and cash 
collections contracts

Chowney

164. Development 
opportunities on 
Churchfields estate

Chowney

165. (E) Development 
opportunities on 
Churchfields estate 
(part 2 report)

Chowney

166. (E) Site at west marina Chowney
Cabinet – 8 APRIL 2019

170. Rough sleeping 
update

Batsford

171. Museum committee 
minutes

Forward

173a. Temporary 
accommodation 
update

Batsford

173b. (E) Commercial property 
purchases

Chowney

c)
Notes:



- 3 -

1. The Mayor will call over the minutes and members will rise and 
indicate those items which they wish to have discussed.

2. No discussion shall take place at this stage upon part II minutes 
covered by the resolution 9a) above. Any such discussion shall 
be deferred to item X on the agenda.

9.  To consider the recommendations and decisions of committees (if any) 
which the Council has resolved should be discussed after the 
exclusion of the public from the meeting.

Note: Nothing contained in this agenda or in the attached reports and 
minutes of committees constitutes an offer or acceptance of an offer 
or an undertaking or contract by the Borough Council



FULL COUNCIL

13 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 1

Present: Councillors Sinden (Chair), Bacon (Vice-Chair), Barnett, Batsford, Battley, S 
Beaney, Berelson, Bishop, Chowney, Cox, Davies, Evans, Fitzgerald, Levane, 
O’Callaghan, Roberts, Rogers, Sabetian, Scott, Turner, Webb, Louise, Lee, Patmore, 
K Beaney, Beaver, Edwards, Foster, Marlow-Eastwood, and Rankin.

39. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were noted for Councillors Charman and Forward.

40. TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE LAST 
MEETING 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Full Council meeting held on 19th December 
2018 be approved and signed by the Mayor as a correct record of the 
proceedings.

41. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The following Councillors declared an interest in the minutes:

Councillors Committee Minutes Interest
Lee Cabinet, 4th 

February 2019
148 (E) – 
Commercial 
Property 
Purchases

Prejudicial – Knows 
the proposed 
developers

S Beaney Cabinet, 4th 
February 2019

148 (E) – 
Commercial 
Property 
Purchases

Prejudicial – 
Involved with 
Hastings older 
women community
housing

Rankin Cabinet, 4th 
February 2019

148 (E) – 
Commercial 
Property 
Purchases

Personal – works in 
the property sector

42. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR AND LEADER 

There were no announcements made by the Mayor or the Leader.

43. QUESTIONS (IF ANY) FROM: 

43(a). MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC UNDER RULE 11

A written question was received from Mr Ian Sier regarding funding for sustainable 
transport infrastructure and the setting up of a local task group to work with other 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 2a



FULL COUNCIL

13 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 2

agencies on this issue. Councillor Chowney replied to the question. Copies of the 
question and response were circulated to Councillors and members of the public.

Mr Sier asked a supplementary question inquiring if alternative resources, such as the 
EU Desti-Smart funding, could be allocated to support a small task group. Councillor 
Chowney replied that the Council does not currently have the resources to do this but 
would explore the possibility of alternative funding.

A written question was received from Mr Mat McDonnell regarding air pollution. 
Councillor Chowney replied to the question. Copies of the question and response 
were circulated to Councillors and members of the public. 

In a supplementary question Mr McDonnell asked if the Council could monitor local air 
pollution. Councillor Chowney replied that this is a statutory duty of the Council and 
figures can be supplied to the questioner and members of the Council.

A written question was received from Mr Ken Davies regarding the Hastings and St 
Leonards Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan. Councillor Chowney replied and 
copies of the question and response were circulated to Councillors and members of 
the public.

In a supplementary question Mr Davies asked what Hastings Borough Council will do 
to pressure East Sussex County Council, and local businesses, to support rapid 
decarbonisation. Councillor Chowney responded that he will be looking to setup a 
working group to report back to the Council on action being taken on decarbonisation. 

A written question was received from Mr Tony Palin regarding the repealing of bye-
laws on proposed cycling routes. Councillor Chowney replied and copies of the 
question and response were circulated to Councillors and members of the public.

A written question was received from Ms Julia Hilton regarding Hastings and St 
Leonards share of the carbon budget. Councillor Chowney replied and copies of the 
question and response were circulated to Councillors and members of the public.

In a supplementary question Ms Hilton asked if the Council will bring a report back to 
Full Council in 6 months to provide an update on action being taken to reduce carbon 
emissions and what resources the Council will allocate to this task. Councillor 
Chowney responded the Council can only use the resources of the committee and 
scrutiny process and this is why a scrutiny working group has been suggested. There 
are no funds available to allocate officers and staff.

Page 2



FULL COUNCIL

13 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 3

43(b). COUNCILLORS UNDER RULE 12

Questions to the Leader, Deputy Leader and other Lead Members were asked and 
answered in accordance with Rule 12.1 as follows:

Questioner Subject Reply given by
Councillor Lee Jerwood gallery - Could you provide an 

update on the Council’s mediation role and 
what is happening at the Jerwood gallery?

Councillor Chowney replied that negotiations 
with the Jerwood gallery are ongoing. 

Councillor 
Chowney

Councillor 
Patmore

Corporate peer challenge - Still to see the 
results of the 2017 Local Government 
Association Corporate Peer Challenge. In 
response to a Freedom of Information request 
it was said the report would come to Cabinet 
last October, but we still haven’t seen it.

Councillor Chowney replied that the 
recommendations have been circulated. The 
final report has not been agreed and 
therefore will not be published.

Councillor 
Chowney

Councillor  
Rankin

Homelessness – The Leader of the Council 
promised to resign if he didn’t meet his 
targets for the Hastings Housing Company. 
Can the Leader provide an update on the 
numbers? 

Councillor Chowney responded that he didn’t 
have the numbers available but can share 
them with Councillors at a later date.

Councillor 
Chowney

Councillor  
Turner

Emergency shelters - We have seen coldest 
weather of the year over past weeks. Can 
Councillor Batsford provide an update of the 
use of the emergency shelter and other 
services available in Hastings?

Councillor Batsford replied that the Council is 
set to spend additional funds on temporary 
accommodation.

Councillor 
Batsford

Councillor  
Levane

Local Government cuts – Would the Leader 
agree that Council cuts are falling more 
heavily on the most vulnerable areas and how 
bad do you think this will be under the 

Councillor  
Chowney

Page 3



FULL COUNCIL

13 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 4

Government’s Fair Funding Formula?

Councillor Chowney agreed and replied that 
Labour councils are disproportionately 
affected by cuts and highlighted that 
proposals are being consulted on removing 
the deprived area adjustment. 

Councillor  
Davies

Safety on our streets – Austerity has meant 
the decomposition of safety on our streets. 
The precept announced by the Police and 
Crime Commissioner for Sussex will mean an 
additional 5 officers in Hastings. Can the 
Leader outline what we are doing, and have 
done, as a Council to try to fill the gap?

Councillor Fitzgerald replied that Hastings is 
lucky to have an award winning community 
safety manager. It is to be seen if the precept 
increase will lead to a fall in crime.

Councillor  
Fitzgerald

Councillor  
Barnett

Council Tax Reduction Scheme - How can 
the Council provide support to those most in 
need in the town through the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme?

Councillor Rogers replied that the Council is 
retaining the 100% council tax reduction for 
those most in need. 

Councillor 
Rogers

Councillor 
Bacon

Food bank usage - Our MP has admitted the 
correlation between Universal Credit and the 
increase in food bank usage. Is the Leader as 
angry as myself about how long it has taken 
for the Government to announce its failure in 
this policy area?

Councillor Chowney replied that he was angry 
and that within the first few months of 
Universal Credit rollout Hastings foodbank 
saw an 85% increase in use.

Councillor 
Chowney

Councillor 
Edwards

Country Park visitor centre – We were 
informed last year that a preferred bidder was 
selected. Can you confirm the bidder has 
been awarded the contract and the name of 
the preferred bidder?

Councillor Fitzgerald replied that he is unable 

Councillor 
Fitzgerald

Page 4



FULL COUNCIL

13 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 5

to announce the name of the preferred bidder 
at this stage.

44. MOTION (RULE 14) 

Councillor Chowney proposed a motion, as set out in the resolution below, which was 
seconded by Councillor Evans.

Councillor Lee proposed an amendment to the motion seconded by Councillor Rankin, 
as follows:

“We will measure the carbon reducing impact of planting trees on Council land and 
where appropriate plant trees or managed hay meadows to increase carbon 
sequestration as set out in the Royal Society greenhouse gas removal report of 
October 2018. 

Where planting trees is the most effective carbon reduction method we will prioritise 
tree planting over renewable energy installation and we call on East Sussex County 
Council to implement this policy on a wider scale”

The amendment was rejected by Councillor Chowney, as the proposer of the original 
motion.

The Mayor suspended rule 16.6b of Council procedure rules, allowing the proposed 
amendment to be debated at the same time as the main motion. Seconded by 
Councillor Rankin.

Councillors debated the motion and the proposed amendment. In response the Leader 
of the Council thanked all the contributors to the debate.

A vote took place on the amendment proposed by Councillor Lee. The proposed 
amendment was lost by 22 votes against to 8 for, with no abstentions.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the Council do accept the motion as set out 
below:

“On the 8th of October 2018 the IPCC (Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change) 
warned that “rapid, far-reaching, and unprecedented changes in all aspects of society” 
will be required in order to limit global temperature to 1.5C above pre-industrial level 
and that we have only 12 years in which we can realistically accomplish this. Even half 

Page 5



FULL COUNCIL

13 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 6

a degree above that will significantly worsen the risks of drought, floods, mass 
extinctions of animal species, and extreme heat and poverty for hundreds of millions 
of people.

Within the current financial and regulatory framework, addressing this is primarily a 
matter for governments – local authorities have limited influence over the development 
of the local economy, transport, and human behaviour. Councils need significantly 
increased powers to make real change locally, and significantly greater intervention by 
central government to reduce climate change and reduce dependency on fossil 
carbon.

Nevertheless, there are actions the council can take, to limit our own use of fossil 
carbon and encourage others to do the same, although this is limited by available 
resources and the scale of government cuts the council is having to cope with. 
Hastings Council takes this matter so seriously that we’re committed to taking a lead 
on this and set a target for Hastings to become carbon neutral.

To this end, we will:

 Establish an ongoing Climate Change working group (as a panel of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee), which will scrutinise the council’s policies 
and actions to make sure they take into account the climate change impact of 
everything we do;

 Develop a procurement policy that reduces our carbon emissions, procuring 
locally where possible, prioritising goods and services that are less dependent 
on fossil carbon, and prioritising companies who are taking steps to reduce 
their impact on climate change;

 Use whatever powers and influence we have, taking advantage of any new 
powers as they are made available to us by central government, to aim to 
make Hastings carbon neutral by 2030 aiming for the borough to become 
energy self-sufficient through local sustainable energy generation, and call on 
East Sussex County Council to adopt a parallel commitment for Hastings;

 Press ahead with a programme of sustainable energy generation on council-
owned and other land and buildings, investigating every viable council-owned 
site, as well as other sites, aiming towards supplying 30% of the town’s 
electricity by 2030;

 Use the current review of the Local Plan to introduce policy requirements that 
new buildings should meet the most rigorous possible energy efficiency 
standards (for example, the ‘Passivhaus’ standards), include electric vehicle 
charging points in new housing and commercial developments, minimise the 

Page 6



FULL COUNCIL

13 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 7

impacts of climate change (for example, by making sure contribution to 
flooding is minimised) and include solar arrays or other sustainable energy 
generation wherever possible;

 Ensure council land is maintained in a way that maximises species diversity 
and mitigates species extinction;

 Encourage existing supermarkets to install EV charging points, lobby ESCC to 
take up existing government grants to install on street EV charging points, and 
press for a properly co-ordinated national EV charging network;

 Include an evaluation of climate change implications in all reports to council 
committees;

 Build on our existing single use plastic policy by not only eliminating single use 
plastics in council buildings, but also at festivals and events held on council 
land. We will also strongly encourage local businesses to cut back on their use 
of SUPs;

 Use s.106 funding and planning conditions (and any available future powers) to 
continue the development of an off-road walking and cycling network as 
specified in the council’s Local Plan;

 Appoint a member-level ‘Climate Change Champion’ to oversee the 
implementation of the above commitments and monitor the progress of the 
council’s progress towards doing all it can to make Hastings a carbon-neutral 
town;

 Work with voluntary, statutory and community organisations in the borough 
wherever we can to achieve the above commitments;

 Maximise the resources the council dedicates to combatting climate change 
when national government restores council finding to a sustainable level.”

The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7.33pm and the meeting was reconvened at 
7.46pm.

45. MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 

There were no proposed amendments to the membership of any committees.

Page 7



FULL COUNCIL

13 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 8

46. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 

The Mayor having called over the minutes set out in the agenda, the under mentioned 
minutes were reserved for discussion.

Meeting Minute Councillor
Cabinet, 7th January 2019 128 – Ground Mounted Solar Patmore

Cabinet, 7th January 2019 129 – Treasury Management Mid-
Year Report 2018-19

Rankin

Cabinet, 7th January 2019 135.1 – Business Rate Pilot – 75% 
Retention

Lee

Cabinet, 4th February 2019 139 – Flexible Homelessness Grant Levane

Cabinet, 4th February 2019 140 (C) – Amendments to the 
Council’s Constitution

Lee

Cabinet, 4th February 2019 141 – Delivering Efficient 
Sustainable Mobility, Accessibility 
and Responsible Travel (DESTI-
SMART)

Davies

Cabinet, 4th February 2019 144 – Site at West Marina Beaver

Cabinet, 4th February 2019 146 – Approval of the Pay Policy 
Statement for 2019/20

Sabetian

Cabinet, 4th February 2019 148 (E) - Commercial Property 
Purchases

Lee

Minute 130 of Cabinet on 7th January 2019, Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2019/20, 
was a matter on which the Council was required to make a decision. Under rule 13.3, 
the minutes were approved without being called for discussion.

Minute 140 of Cabinet on 4th February 2019, Amendments to the Council’s 
Constitution, was a matter on which the Council was required to make a decision. 
The recommendations were proposed by Councillor Rogers, seconded by Councillor 
Lee and agreed unanimously. 

Minute 143 of Cabinet on 4th February 2019, High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB) Management Plan, was a matter on which the Council was required to 
make a decision. Under rule 13.3, the minutes were approved without being called for 
discussion.

Page 8



FULL COUNCIL

13 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 9

Minute 146 of Cabinet on 4th February 2019, Approval of the Pay Policy Statement 
was a matter on which the Council was required to make a decision. The 
recommendations were proposed by Councillor Rogers, seconded by Councillor Lee 
and agreed unanimously.

Councillors debated minutes 128, 129 and 135.1 of Cabinet on 7th January 2019 and 
minutes 139, 141, 144 and 148 of Cabinet on 4th February 2019. These matters did 
not require approval of Full Council.

Councillors S Beaney and Lee, having declared a prejudicial interest in minute 144 of 
Cabinet on 4th February 2019, Site at West Marina, left the Council Chamber during 
debate on this item.

Minute number 148 of Cabinet on 4th February 2019 was an exempt item. When 
debate moved to this item Councillor Roberts proposed a motion for the exclusion of 
the public from the meeting, seconded by Councillor Beaver.

RESOLVED that the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of minute 148 of the Cabinet meeting held on 4th February, 
Commercial Property Purchases, because it is likely that if members of the 
public were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in the paragraphs of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 
referred to in the relevant report.

No motions for reference to Overview and Scrutiny Committee or reference back to 
Cabinet were approved in respect of the items reserved for discussion and they were 
therefore received.

(The Mayor declared the meeting closed at 9.01pm)

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



FULL COUNCIL

20 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 1

Present: Councillors Sinden (Chair), Bacon (Vice-Chair), Barnett, Batsford, Battley, S 
Beaney, Bereleson, Charman, Chowney, Cox, Davies, Evans, Levane, O’Callaghan, 
Roberts, Rogers, Sabetian, Scott, Turner, Webb, Louise, Lee, Patmore, K Beaney, 
Beaver, Edwards, Foster and Marlow-Eastwood.

47. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were noted for Councillors Bishop, Fitzgerald, Forward and 
Rankin.

48. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The following Councillors declared an interest in the minutes:

Councillor Committee Minutes Interest
Chowney Budget Cabinet, 11 

February 2019
152. (c) Revenue 
Budget 2018/19 
Revised and 
2019/20, plus 
Capital programme 
2019/20 – 2021/22

Prejudicial – has a 
car park pass for 
Grand Parade car 
park.

Scott Budget Cabinet, 11 
February 2019

152. (c) Revenue 
Budget 2018/19 
Revised and 
2019/20, plus 
Capital programme 
2019/20 – 2021/22

Personal – member 
of the East Sussex 
Fire Authority

49. DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN 2019/20 

Councillor Rogers proposed a motion, seconded by Councillor Batsford, that the 
recommendations set out in minute number 151 of Budget Cabinet on 11th February 
2019, Draft Corporate Plan 2019/20, be approved.

Councillor Patmore, Deputy Leader of the Opposition, proposed an amendment to the 
draft corporate plan to amend the wording on page 22 which currently reads:

“Improve street and environmental cleanliness” 

to read:

“Improve street and environmental cleanliness by making sure the new Street 
Cleaning DSO is better than the service it replaces”

Councillor Rogers and Councillor Batsford accepted the amendment as proposed and 
Councillors discussed the Draft Corporate Plan 2019/20 as amended.

Public Document Pack

Page 11

Agenda Item 2b



FULL COUNCIL

20 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 2

RESOLVED (by 20 for to 7 against):

1. That the content of the attached documents, including the supplementary 
papers, form the basis of the council’s corporate plan 2019/20, subject to the 
proviso that any significant amendment made to the council’s draft budget be 
reflected in the final corporate plan text.

2. That delegated authority be given to the Director of Corporate Services and 
Governance, after consultation with the Leader of the Council to make further 
revisions as is considered necessary to the attached plan prior to publication to 
reflect decisions made on the council’s budget.

3. That all those who submitted views as part of the consultation process be 
thanked for their contributions.

The reason for this decision was:

The Council needs to approve the corporate plan as its statement of Hastings 
Borough Council’s strategic direction.

50. REVENUE BUDGET 2018/19 REVISED AND 2019/20, PLUS CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 2019/20 - 2021/22 

Councillor Sinden, the Right Worshipful the Mayor, proposed a motion, seconded by 
Councillor Beaver, and agreed unanimously as follows:

RESOLVED that in order to facilitate full discussion on cabinet’s proposal for 
the revenue budget 2018/19 revised and 2019/20, plus capital programme 
2019/20 – 2021/22 and any proposed amendment to cabinet’s recommendations, 
council suspends Rule 16(6)(b) of council procedure rules (only one amendment 
may be moved and discussed at any one time. No further amendment may be 
moved until the amendment under discussion has been disposed of) to permit 
the Deputy Leader’s motion and all amendments to be on the table and open for 
discussion at the same time.

Councillor Sinden, the Right Worshipful the Mayor, proposed a motion, seconded by 
Councillor Beaver, and agreed unanimously as follows:

RESOLVED that in order for Councillors to take advice from the Assistant 
Director, Financial Services and Revenues, and other officers, under Rule 16(14) 
of council procedure the council proceed as if in committee. 

Councillor Chowney, Leader of the Council, proposed a motion, seconded by 
Councillor Davies, that recommendations 1-14 and recommendation 16 of minute 

Page 12



FULL COUNCIL

20 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 3

number 152 of Budget Cabinet on 11th February 2019, Revenue Budget 2018/19 
Revised and 2019/20, plus Capital programme 2019/20 - 2021/22, be approved.

The Assistant Director, Financial Services and Revenues informed Councillors that 
when Cabinet considered the budget papers the Fire Authority precept was an 
estimate. Now that the East Sussex Fire Authority has agreed its precept for the 
coming financial year appendix A and M of the budget report has been updated and 
hard copies have been distributed to Councillors and to the public gallery. In agreeing 
the budget Councillors are agreeing to the figures in the revised appendix A and M.  

Councillor Lee, Leader of the Opposition, proposed two amendments to the budget, 
seconded by Councillor Edwards, as follows:

Amendment 1 -

“The Council resolves to make additional necessary staffing and supplies and services 
reductions for the 2019/20 year amounting to:

Staffing net saving of £1,192,830 including a net reduction of staffing of 24.7 FTE
Other savings in both corporate and operational budgets of £172,630
£129,000 being added back into the invest to save budget
These savings provide a total net savings of £1,395,460

There is however an area of increased expenditure proposed, the ongoing costs to be 
met from some of the savings identified above. Reinstate reduced CCTV hours at a 
cost of £30,000.

The net overall saving to the budget is £1,395,460 in 2019/20. The budget deficit 
being reduced from £1,746,553 to £520,623 in 2019/20 and to £1,183,000 in 2020/21.

The remaining reserve balances as at 31st March 2020 would increase and be as 
follows:

Transition reserves £956,000
Community Safety Reserve £150,00
Economic Development £301,000
Combined total of £1,407,000”

Amendment 2 -

“Should the Council choose not to accept amendment 1 it is proposed that the 
reduction in monitoring hours for CCTV is reinstated at a cost of £30,000 per annum. 
This to be funded from the deletion from the budget of the local strategic partnership 
funding (£26,630) and a £3,370 reduction from the Cultural Activities budget.“

Page 13



FULL COUNCIL

20 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 4

The mayor adjourned the meeting at 7.23pm so that Councillors could consider the 
proposed amendments. The meeting reconvened at 7.36pm.

Councillor Chowney rejected the proposed amendments and Councillors debated the 
motion and the proposed amendments. 

The Mayor proposed that the meeting return to Full Council mode, seconded by 
Councillor Beaver, in order to vote.

The proposed amendment 1 was lost by 7 votes for to 20 votes against with 0 
abstentions. Councillors K Beaney, beaver, Edwards, Foster, Lee, Marlow-Eastwood 
and Patmore voted in favour of the amendment. Councillors Bacon, Batsford, Battley, 
S Beaney, Berelson, Charman, Chowney, Cox, Davies, Evans, Levane, Louise, 
O’Callaghan, Roberts, Rogers, Sabetian, Scott, Turner and Webb voted against the 
amendment.

The proposed amendment 2 was lost by 7 votes for to 20 votes against with 0 
abstentions. Councillors K Beaney, beaver, Edwards, Foster, Lee, Marlow-Eastwood 
and Patmore voted in favour of the amendment. Councillors Bacon, Batsford, Battley, 
S Beaney, Berelson, Charman, Chowney, Cox, Davies, Evans, Levane, Louise, 
O’Callaghan, Roberts, Rogers, Sabetian, Scott, Turner and Webb voted against the 
amendment.

Recommendations 1-14 and 16 of the motion proposed by Councillor Chowney were 
approved by 20 votes for, to 7 against with 0 abstentions. Councillors, Bacon, Barnett, 
Batsford, Battley, S Beaney, Berelson, Charman, Chowney, Cox, Davies, Evans, 
Levane, Louise, O’Callaghan, Roberts, Rogers, Sabetian, Scott, Turner and Webb 
voted in favour of the motion. Councillors K Beaney, Beaver, Edwards, Foster, Lee, 
Marlow-Eastwood and Patmore voted against the motion. 

RESOLVED (by 20 votes for, to 7 against, with 0 abstentions) that:

1. Approve the revised revenue budget for 2018/19 (Appendix A).

2. Approve the draft 2019/20 revenue budget (Appendix A).

3. Approve a 2.99% (rounded up) increase in the Borough Council's part of the 
Council Tax.

4. Agree that the absolute minimum level of reserves that shall be retained be 
£6m (plus General Fund Balance).

5. Approve the Capital Programme 2018/19 (revised) to 2021/22 (Appendix P).

6. Approve the proposed expenditure from the Renewal and Repairs Reserve, 
and Information Technology Reserve (Appendices J and I respectively) and 
those items from other reserves shown in Appendix H that can proceed without 
further reference to Cabinet or Council.

Page 14



FULL COUNCIL

20 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 5

7. Approve that the use of the monies in the budget and Reserves for "Invest to 
Save" schemes be determined by the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with 
the Leader of the Council.

8. Approve the revised Land and Property Disposal Programme (Appendix L), 
and agree that disposals can be brought forward if market conditions make it 
sensible to do so.

9. Agree that schemes marked with an asterisk in the Capital Programme can 
proceed without further reference to Cabinet or Council.

10. Agree that work on Priority Income and Efficiency Reviews (PIER) through 
the Strategic Oversight and Planning Board should continue, and where 
possible identify a sustainable budget for a period in excess of one year. A mid-
year review, for members and officers, to be undertaken in the light of the 
continuing severe government grant reductions.

11. Approve the detailed recommendations in revised Appendix M, which relate 
to the setting of Council Tax in accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local 
Government Act 1992 (to be updated for full Council).

12. Approve that the budget be amended as necessary to reflect the final grant 
figures including Disabled Facility Grants - once received.

13. Approve an increase in the Council Tax premium chargeable for long term 
empty properties to 100% extra from 2019/20 (from 50% extra), 200% extra from 
2020/21 (empty for 5-10 years), 300% extra from 2021/22 (empty greater than 10 
years), i.e. the maximum permissible amounts in accordance with the Rating 
(Property in Common Occupation) and Council Tax (Empty Dwellings) Act 2018.

14. Approve that the determination of eligibility and award in respect of the 
Business Rate Retail Relief Scheme is delegated to the Chief Finance Officer for 
the next two financial years and any extension period thereafter.

16. Approve that the Director of Operational Services, or his nominee, in 
consultation with the lead member for Environment and Place, will consider, 
negotiate, undertake an Equality Impact Assessment and agree amendments to 
the recycling arrangements within the new joint waste contract.

The reason for this decision was:

1. Major reductions in funding are set to continue in 2019/20 and this impacts heavily 
upon the Council’s ability to provide services and grants across all areas of existing 
activity. A major overhaul of the funding mechanism along with the Government's 
2019 spending review provides considerable uncertainty on funding for 2020/21 and 
beyond.

Page 15



FULL COUNCIL

20 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 6

2. Since 2010/11 funding has been reduced by more than 70% in cash terms on a like 
for like basis. To ensure key corporate priorities and statutory responsibilities are 
achieved it remains imperative that the limited resources available are properly 
targeted.

3. The Council needs to be in a position to match its available resources to its 
priorities across the medium term and to maintain sufficient reserves and capacity to 
deal with potentially large and unexpected events in addition to fluctuations in income 
and expenditure levels.

4. The Council is exposed to a much greater degree of volatility in the level of funding 
it receives through Non Domestic Rates. In addition it is also exposed to a much 
higher degree of volatility in terms of Council Tax Support claims – the cost falling 
directly on the Council and the preceptors. The potential downside risks of Brexit and 
the increased reliance on income streams provide further potential volatility to the 
Council's future funding.

5. Further reductions in grant funding have major implications for the Council and as 
such work needs to continue to identify and make savings in order to produce 
balanced budgets in 2019/20 and beyond. 

The Mayor asked Councillor Chowney to leave the Council Chamber at 8.18pm for the 
discussion and voting of recommendation 15 of the Revenue Budget 2018/19 Revised 
and 2019/20, plus capital programme 2019/20 – 2021/22 due to a prejudicial interest.

Councillor Rogers moved a motion that recommendation 15 of the Revenue Budget 
2018/19 Revised and 2019/20, plus capital programme 2019/20 – 2021/22 be agreed, 
seconded by Councillor Batsford.

Recommendation 15 of the motion proposed by Councillor Rogers was approved by 
19 votes for, to 7 against with 0 abstentions. Councillors, Bacon, Barnett, Batsford, 
Battley, S Beaney, Berelson, Charman, Chowney, Cox, Davies, Evans, Levane, 
Louise, O’Callaghan, Roberts, Rogers, Sabetian, Scott, Turner and Webb voted in 
favour of the motion. Councillors K Beaney, Beaver, Edwards, Foster, Lee, Marlow-
Eastwood and Patmore voted against the motion. 

RESOLVED (by 19 votes for, 7 against) that:

15. Approve the revised parking charges as detailed in Appendix Q.

Councillor Chowney returned to the Chamber at 8.21pm.

51. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 

Page 16



FULL COUNCIL

20 FEBRUARY 2019

CAB. 7

The Mayor having called over the minutes set out in the agenda, the under mentioned 
minutes were reserved for discussion.

Meeting Minute Councillor
Budget Cabinet, 11th 
February 2019

153 (C) - Treasury Management, 
Annual Investment Strategy and 
Capital Strategy 2019/20

Lee

Minute number 153 of budget cabinet on 11 February 2019, Treasury Management, 
Annual Investment Strategy and Capital Strategy 2019/20, was a matter on which the 
council was required to make a decision. Councillor Chowney proposed approval of 
the minute, seconded by Councillor Batsford, and agreed by 20 votes for, to 7 against.

(The Mayor declared the meeting closed at 8.37pm)

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18


	Agenda
	2a To approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	2b Approve the minutes of the last budget full council meeting
	Minutes


